
  

What East Boston Residents Need to Know about the Casino Law  

In November 2011, the Massachusetts legislature expanded legalized gambling, authorizing one slot 
parlor and up to three resort-style casinos to be built in different regions across the Commonwealth. 
Because casinos and slot parlors are expected to significantly impact the communities in which they 
are built, the law requires casino owners and public officials to take certain steps before a casino 
license can be approved.  Suffolk Downs, a racetrack near the Orient Heights neighborhood of East 
Boston, is one of the locations that is currently being discussed as the potential home of a resort-style 
casino. Here are some key things East Boston residents should know.   

What is the Massachusetts Gaming Commission?  
 
The casino law established a new statewide Gaming Commission that will develop any additional 
rules needed to appropriately govern casinos and will oversee, monitor, and enforce them as needed. 
The Gaming Commission is also in charge of awarding and denying casino licenses; and, in the 
future, it can decide whether to revoke, restrict, or renew a casino’s license. The Gaming Commission 
has begun meeting and is gathering data and seeking expert opinions on a wide range of issues related 
to casinos.  

Can you describe the process for approving a casino license?                               

Although the rules that will govern expanded gaming in the Commonwealth have yet to be written, 
the casino law outlines some basic requirements that would-be applicants for casino licenses must 
meet before they can proceed. It’s important to note that some of these steps may happen at parallel 
times and may involve decision-makers, community members, and/or casino applicants.  

First, the Gaming Commission will flesh out rules and issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) that 
casino applicants must complete. The RFP will include any additional criteria applicants for a 
casino license must meet, besides the requirements listed in the gaming law. The Gaming 
Commission has publicly stated that it expects to issue RFPs sometime in 2013.  

In the meantime, casino applicants in the Boston area are already preparing. While it may take 
some time for the Gaming Commission to issue RFPs, it’s likely that applicants for gaming licenses 
will start to approach communities before an RFP is released. This is because the gaming law requires 
applicants for casino licenses to take the following steps before they can formally request a license:  

1) Negotiate a signed “mitigation agreement” with the host community, any affected surrounding 
communities, and any impacted live entertainment venues. The agreements must be made 
public within seven (7) days of signing.  

2) Get a “YES” vote on a ballot question from the host community.  



Once a casino applicant has submitted an RFP, the Gaming Commission will evaluate the 
applications and decide whether to award the license. The Gaming Commission must hold a public 
hearing to give members of the public an opportunity to comment on the entire application. In 
general, the Commission must approve or deny the application within 30-90 days of the public 
hearing. A license, once awarded, is good for 15 years.  

Will East Boston residents have a say in whether the proposal moves forward?  

Yes. Under the gaming law, Boston and Revere are considered “host communities” for a proposed 
casino at Suffolk Downs. Before a casino applicant can move forward, voters in both cities must vote 
YES or NO on the following question:  

“Shall the city of [Boston/Revere] permit the operation of a gaming establishment licensed by 
the Massachusetts Gaming Commission to be located at [description of site]?”   

A YES vote is binding and allows the casino applicant to proceed with its application. Even if a host 
community votes NO on the casino question, however, the applicant may choose to renegotiate its 
agreement with the host community and call for a second vote to be held.  It is important to realize 
that the vote in the host community may take place this year, in 2012.  

The gaming law included an important exception related to the vote. In “host communities” with 
more than 125,000 people, including Boston, the vote is limited by default to the ward in which the 
casino will be located. This means that, unless Mayor Menino and the Boston City Council 
expand the definition of “host community” to all of Boston, only East Bostonians will be eligible 
to vote to accept or reject the casino. However, the impact of the casino—and the mitigation 
agreement—will likely cover the entire City.  

So, what steps is the City of Boston taking to prepare for a potential casino?  

Mayor Menino has appointed a five-member advisory committee, the Host Community Advisory 
Committee, that will play a critical role in any negotiations to place a casino in Boston. Among other 
responsibilities, Committee members will “engage public opinion through public meetings as well as 
community and online forums” and work with the City of Boston to ensure that City interests are 
“appropriately represented” in the mitigation agreement between the casino and the City.  

Where can I go for more information? 

No Eastie Casino at www.noeastiecasino.com  
Neighbors of Suffolk Downs at http://www.neighborsofsuffolkdowns.org/  
City of Boston Host Community Advisory Committee at http://www.cityofboston.gov/gaming/ 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission at http://www.mass.gov/gaming/ 

 


